
	

Notice	of	Annual	General	Meeting	(AGM)	2023	

You	are	invited	to	attend	the	AGM	of	the	owners	and	occupiers	of	the	houses	of	the	
Hanover	Crescent	Enclosure	to	be	held	on	Wednesday	24th	May	2023	@	7.30pm	at	
Mojo’s	Cafe,	148	Lewes	Rd,	BN2	3LG	

AGM	Agenda	
1.	Nominations	for	members	of	the	Committee	(maximum	of	8).	
(Note:	the	East	Sussex	Act	requires	that	one	quarter	of	an	hour	is	allowed	after	the	
start	time	for	candidates	to	be	nominated)	
2.	Apologies	for	absence	
3.	Minutes	of	last	AGM	
4.	Report	from	the	outgoing	secretary	for	2022/23	
5.	Report	from	the	outgoing	treasurer	for	2022/23	
6.	Election	of	Committee		
7.	Questions	from	the	Yloor	

General	Meeting	Agenda	
1. Garden	and	Tree	Maintenance	
2. Parking	Update	

a. Revised	Parking	Regulations	2023	-	Vote	by	ALL	
3. Major	Infrastructure	Projects		

a. Construction	of	2	new	Bike	Stands		-	Status	
b. Installation	of	New	Railings	-	Vote	by	OWNERS	-	£5,000	

4. ConYirmation	of	Crescent	Levy	for	2023/24	-	VOTE	by	OWNERS	-	£6000	
5. AOB	

Please	speak	to	any	member	of	the	Committee	or	email	secretary@hanovercrescent.org	
regarding	any	items	you	wish	to	raise.	

Please	note	that	a	package	containing	additional	information	on	AGM	issues	has	been	
posted	on	the	HCE	website.	If	you	wish	to	receive	this	package	by	email	or	by	hard	copy	
then	contact	secretary@hanovercrescent.org	conYirming	your	name	and	house	number.	

New	names	for	election	to	the	Committee	would	be	welcome,	please	contact	any	present	
member	or	ensure	you	are	nominated	within	15	minutes	after	the	start	of	the	meeting.	

Voting	rules,	parking	regulations	and	other	matters	can	be	found	on	the	
hanovercrescent.org	website.	You	have	to	attend	the	meeting	to	vote,	as	proxies	are	
not	allowed.	No	individual	will	have	more	than	two	votes.		

Outgoing	Committee:	
Paul	Farmer,	Sue	Gollifer,	John	Hinchliffe,	John	Hird,	Neil	Smith,	Ruth	Dixon,	Amanda	
Papadopoulos,	Chris	Carter-Pegg	



Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Committee of Management of 
Hanover Crescent Enclosure   DRAFT 4 

Thursday 26 May 2022 

Opening 

The Annual General Meeting of the Committee of Management of Hanover Crescent Enclosure 
was called to order at 19:40. Leanne Allan, as a nonresident, was the independent Chair and opened 
the meeting. 

Present 

There were 26 attendees. Apologies were received from 4 residents. Neil Smith asked for 
confirmation that all present were owner-occupiers and no one indicated otherwise 

Nominations for Membership of the Committee 

All members of the outgoing Committee volunteered to be re-elected. Following a request for a 
further member, Chris Carter-Pegg and one other were nominated.  

Approval of the Minutes of the last AGM 

The minutes of the 2020 AGM were approved (The 2021 AGM had been cancelled due to Covid 
restrictions). 

Secretary’s Report and Review. 

John Hinchliffe presented the report covering the previous two years, part of the published AGM 
pack, and summarised the Committee’s activities for the past two years.  

Treasurer’s Report 

Paul Farmer introduced the financial statement, part of the published AGM pack, explaining the 
year-end financial statement that were in good order with the establishment of a reserve fund. 

Election of the Committee  

Fifteen minutes having elapsed, the new Committee was appointed. There being one one more 
nomination than seats, Sian Thomas offered to stand down from the Committee. Sian was thanked 
for her valuable contributions. The remaining outgoing Committee members, plus the two new 
nominees were appointed without a vote being necessary. Committee members for 2022/23 are: 
Paul Farmer, Sue Gollifer, John Hinchliffe , John Hird, Neil Smith, Amanda Papadopoulos, Chris 
Carter-Pegg and one other. 

1



GENERAL MEETING 

General Business 

1. Adoption of new Constitution 

Neil Smith introduced the constitution document, explaining the rationale for its introduction. The 
discussion raised several points, mainly on specific clauses including: 

a. that it was inconsistent to need a two-thirds majority vote to change the document, given that a 
simple majority is needed to approve it; 

b. that parts of the document contradict parts of the East Sussex Act by giving the Committee 
powers not defined in the Act (such as raising a Levy and parking control)  

c. that the sanctions for non-payment of the Crescent Levy (withholding of parking permits and of 
an AGM vote) were ‘dystopian’; that such sanctions had been part of the Parking Regulations 
for some years; that such sanction does not apply to those who do not have a RP; that the 
allocation of permits is unfair to those in houses with multiple flats; that no account is made for 
people’s ability to pay the Levy, that these are the only sanction the Committee has. 

d. that the document has no standing in law; 

e. that the Constitution was essential in order to clarify the role and responsibilities of the 
Committee and provide greater transparency.  

After the discussions it was agreed: 
- that the document be amended to require only a ‘simple majority’ to make changes to the 
Constitution; 
- that the document should make explicit the current practice - that in collecting the Levy or 
considering the sanctions for non-payment, account will be taken of any exceptional circumstances 
affecting the ability to pay the Levy. 

Subject to the above changes, the Constitution was approved by a show of hands. 

2. Bi-Centennial Garden party 5th June 

Becky Simpson set out plans for the afternoon. Several activities are planned, with food and drink. 
Some money has been allocated by the Committee for basic provisions and residents are asked to 
bring additional food and drink to share. Several people offered to help set up the event in the 
morning, and also to help with the Crescent tidy-up on the Saturday.  

2



3. Garden and Tree Maintenance 

The new garden gates seem to be having a positive effect in reducing anti-social behaviour, 
planting along the associated wire fences continues. The new wild flower beds are in place and 
some planting is now showing. Residents are encouraged to let the Committee know of suggestions 
they have for improving the garden.  

Tree maintenance work has continued. This year some major work was done, but in previous few 
years very little work was done. The AGM had previously agreed a budget of up to £1500 a year 
for tree maintenance. It was proposed to replace this cap with 5 year budget of £5000 to be spent as 
when required.  

This was put to a vote and approved by a show of hands. 

4. Parking 

There was some discussion of parking issues as a part of the discussion on the Constitution above. 

It was reported that some car owning residents in nos. 23/24 are unable to get permits to park on 
the Crescent even for essential car use, because the allocation in those buildings is already taken. 
Though potential owners should be aware of restrictions on issuing parking permits, it is still felt 
that the allocation of permits is possibly uneven.  

The understanding has been that Crescent residents cannot apply for Council permits to park 
outside the Crescent. It was reported by North Lodge that it was in fact possible to get a Council 
permit if there is proof that a Crescent permit was not available and that the Committee could issue 
formal letters to confirm this. 

The Committee was asked to look again at the Resident Permit allocation, and also to follow up on 
the availability of Council permits.  

5. Major Infrastructure Projects 

5.1 Recommendation for installation of Electricity Supply in the Garden 

Neil Smith introduced this proposal that was approved at the 2020 AGM but re-introduced with a 
more accurate budget requirement of £16,000. The installation of the supply is intended to enable 
any future installation of electric car charging points, street lighting and other services.  
Points made during the discussion included:  

a. That subsidies from the Council could be more thoroughly researched; that some grants 
may be available for car charging units, but not for installing an electricity supply. 

b. That an EV infrastructure would have an upwards effect on property prices 

3



c. That the cost was too high; that the proposal is not justified unless accompanied by charge 
points for cars, and that there were too few electric vehicles (EVs) in the Crescent to justify 
expenditure now; that future government policy is uncertain; that future technological 
options are uncertain and investment now was too risky; that the proposal was premature. 

d. That the Committee keeps finding new ways to spend residents’ money; that the committee 
wishes to spend £20k (sic) on lighting a Christmas tree. 

e. That even if there are technological changes in how cars are charged, or changes in 
government policies, an electricity supply would still be required; that the introduction of 
electric vehicles was already a reality, for instance with company’s introducing EV only 
policies; that the need to install EV charge points in the Crescent is unavoidable. 

f. That it would not be good to rely on having electric cables across the road from houses in 
order to charge cars; that the increased presence of more public charge points on nearby 
roads would be inconvenient. 

g. That EV charge points may be unsightly. 

h. That not making the investment in the infrastructure now will raise problems in future as 
use of EV’s becomes necessary. 

In a vote, the proposal was rejected by 14 votes to 12. 

5.2 Phase 4 of Wall Repair 

The final phase of the repairs to the wall is proposed with a budget of £9500. Points made during 
the discussion included:  

a. That Brighton Council are the freeholders and if the Garden Rate is insufficient to fund the 
costs of maintaining the wall that Brighton Council, as owners of the wall, should be paying 
the shortfall. Neil Smith said that the Crescent was solely responsible for repairs.  

b. The necessity of the work was queried; that the full work specifications should be provided 
to all residents so that they can evaluate the need for the work. 

c. That the work is the last part of a long-term project and will help avoid future ad hoc repairs 
as parts of the wall degrade further; that the cost is good value for money; that considerable 
savings have been made over the original quotes received for the repair of the wall; that the 
quality of the work by the preferred contractors is excellent. 

The proposal was approved after a show of hands. 

6. Crescent Levy for 2022/23 

4



The recommendation from the Committee had been to raise £17,500 for infrastructure projects. 
However, with the rejection of the electricity supply project it was proposed that £8,750 would be 
sufficient to maintain the reserve fund at £30,000 whilst still going ahead with the wall repairs. 

This proposal was approved on a show of hands. 
(Note: Before future AGMs the Committee will provide additional information on proposed 
infrastructure projects if requested) 

7. Any Other Business. 

Rubbish collections continue to be unreliable with recent collections occurring seemingly only 
after the Committee Chair has contacted our local councilor on several occasions. It might help if 
all residents reported missing collections each week via the Council web site. It was suggested that 
we could propose communal bins outside the Crescent somewhere; it was suggested that we 
consider a private collection (and then bill the council for it) but there was not much support for 
these ideas. 

There was a request that we look at improved bicycle parking. It is acknowledged that the existing 
racks are unsuitable and untidy. The Committee had previously polled residents to see if there was 
support for us to latch on to the existing Council Cycle Hangars, but given the costs, few were 
interested. The Committee was asked to look at more options for providing a better facility.  

There was a suggestion that we could install permanent table tennis tables on the lawn. This 
received little support.  

There was a query about the use of the compost heaps in the garden. These should not be used for 
any form of cooked food waste, and woody materials that do not compost easily should not be left 
in the garden. It was suggested that the Committee look to placing a sign as to what can be left in 
the compost heaps.  

The Chair thanked everyone and Neil Smith thanked Karl Simpson of Mojo’s Cafe for his 
hospitality and Leanne Allan for chairing. The Chair closed the meeting.  

JH 1/Jun/2022

5



 
A. Report from the Secretary 

 
 
We sent ten newsletters and notices to residents over the last year with updates and 
information and seeking feedback on various issues.  
 
The members of the Committee have continued with their routine responsibilities over the 
year, ensuring the garden is maintained, that parking is managed, and managing the 
Crescent funds. There was a lovely bicentennial garden party , the regular bonfire evening 
had to be cancelled because of bad weather, but we did have a nice evening by the 
Christmas  tree with fires and carols and punch. 
 
During the year, we reviewed the allocation of parking permits and increased, as a trial, the 
permits available to the flats in 23/24, the work on the wall was finally completed, the 
abandoned bicycles were removed and we spent time on investigating options for improved 
cycle parking facilities. There have been some major issues with trees and much discussion 
about foxes.  
 
We feel that the new garden gates have been having a positive effect with much less 
evidence of drug taking in the garden. The new wildflower beds are coming together nicely. 
Members of the committee have cleaned up the signs on the entrance pillars and removed 
graffiti. 
 
 
JH May 2023 
 



The Committee of Management of 
Hanover Crescent Enclosure

Revenue and Expenditure Account for Year to 30 April 2023

2021-22 2022-23 Notes are for 2022-23

INCOME Garden Rate (via BHCC)   8,673.30   9,168.10 Raised via Residents’ Council Tax
Crescent Levy -   8,930.00 Raised from Freeholders
Bank Interest   2.75   50.00 Infrastructure Account Interest Received
Other Income   895.00   255.00 Resident & Visitor Parking Permits

INCOME Total   9,571.05   18,403.10 

EXPENDITURE Garden Maintenance   4,200.00   4,200.00 
Garden Extras   1,240.00   100.00 Seasonal Plantings & Furniture
Tree Maintenance   2,700.00   1,345.00 Tree inspections, cropping & new plantings
Structural Tree Emergencies   -     3,006.00 Structural Tree Emergencies
Pillars & Walls Maintenance   -     10,305.98 Phase 4 Repointing
Road & Pavement Maintenance   1,068.00   -   
Gates, Railings & Fence Posts   2,272.80   -   
Parking Management   -     -   
Antisocial Behaviour / Security   67.20   -   
Community Event Materials   798.71   563.99 Bonfire Night, Christmas & Social
Website & Zoom   249.28   374.71 Software & Hosting
Legal   -     -   
Rent   -     -   
Professional Fees   -     -   
Insurance   1,253.17   1,270.44 Public Indemnity, Enclosure Infrastructure & Committee Liability
Stationery & Postage   -     2.35 
Underpayments Written Off   -     -   

EXPENDITURE Total   13,849.16   21,168.47 

Excess of income over expenditure   (4,278.11)   (2,765.37)

YEAR END CASH POSITION

Opening Balance (all accounts)   33,329.69   30,838.38 Opening balance at 01-May
    Surplus/(Deficit) for Year   (4,278.11)   (2,765.37)
Movement in Crescent Invoices Outstanding (debtors) for the year   1,196.80   (77.21)
Movement in Crescent Bills Outstanding (creditors) for the year   590.00   (274.99)
Closing Balance (all accounts)   30,838.38   27,720.81 Closing balance at 30-April–2023

Current Account:   11,792.12   1,699.28 
Infrastructure Account   19,046.26   26,021.53 

  30,838.38   27,720.81 
These accounts have been prepared from the treasurer's receipts and vouchers and give a true and fair view of the cash position at 30-April–2023

Outstanding Debtors

Brighton & Hove Council £0.00
Outstanding Creditors

Richard Oakeley £350.00
Prepayments

None £0.00

The Committee of Management of Hanover Crescent Enclosure



Hanover Crescent Enclosure AGM 2023 

General Meeting - Pre-read 2023 
 

1. Garden and Tree Maintenance 
Following supporting comments from residents the three wild flower beds planted 
along the road will be increased to five with the addition of two more. (Note: Work 
on this project has already started). 

At the last AGM a budget of £5000 over 5 years for tree maintenance was approved 
and this year we have spent about £1350 of the projected £5000. Unfortunately we 
have also had to spend additional money on two trees that were identified as 
significant safety risks. A sycamore at the north end was completely removed and a 
large elm opposite No 5 will be significantly reduced to a lower height. (Note this 
work is scheduled for first week of May). 

When completed this additional cost for emergency interventions will be about 
£4500. The 5 year budget remains as a target and hopefully we will not have any 
additional emergencies. 

We plan to plant new trees in the gap left after the sycamore’s removal and copper 
beech and yew have been suggested. The estimated budget is less than £1000 for 
three trees. Please let the Committee know if you have other ideas of types of 
trees. The planting of fruit trees has also been suggested but this site is unsuitable.  

2. Parking Update 
 
The new Resident Permits for 2023/24 will be distributed in early June. Currently 
there are 39 Resident Permits issued - 23 dwellings with one and 8 dwellings with 
two. 

2a: Parking Regulations - proposed changes from June 2023 - Vote by All 
Proper management of parking in the Crescent is essential for convenience and 
maintaining property and rental values. 

The Parking Regulations have been in use since 2006 with only minor changes 
made, with the latest revision from 2017. The Regulations are kept under regular 
review to check for practicality and fairness.    

The proposed updated Parking Regulations were posted on the website in March 
and residents and owners were asked for review and comment. The final version is 
also posted on the website. 

The basic criterion of two Resident Permits per house number does not change. 
The main proposed changes are: 



1) Increase the number of available Residents Permits for House 23/24 from 4 to 
6. There are 10 dwellings in 23/24 and increasing the allocation to 6 is fairer 
and in line with the ratio in other multi-dwelling houses.  

2) In multi-dwelling properties no individual dwelling will be issued with more than 
one Resident Permit. 

3) Visitor permits may not be used for purposes of commercial gain including short 
term holiday lets such as AirBnB. 

3. Major Infrastructure Projects 

3a: New Bike Stands 
At the last AGM the Committee was asked to look at other options for the current 
bike stands located at the north and south ends. There were several abandoned 
bikes at the north end that, when requested, the Council removed and donated to 
the Brighton Cycle Hub charity. 

The Committee considered several options. The locked covers, “Cyclopods”, that 
have appeared recently on Brighton’s streets were considered too expensive and 
out of keeping with the garden setting due to their size. 

The Committee preferred proposal was to lay a new base of terracrete blocks (pad 
size of 3.2mX2.0m) and Sheffield bike stands (inverted U), three per pad. The 
terracrete would offer a more open and softer option than a solid concrete pad.  
Unfortunately we could not find a contractor at a reasonable price for the work and, 
therefore, have decided to postpone the project for now and try again next year. 

3b: Installation of New Railings - Vote by Owners £5000 
The proposal is to install railings on the “inside” pedestrian gate openings at the 
north and south ends. The gap between the pillars at both ends is 180cm wide and 
there would be 11 cast iron bars each 2.5cm wide and 180cm high, including a 
capping finial, placed 13cm apart with a crossing bar at 150cm. 

For the installation of the the two sets of railings we received two conforming bids at 
£4250 and £7000, respectively. The preferred contractor, who offered the lower 
price, specialises in the refurbishment and replacement of traditional ironwork in 
Brighton. 

The proposed railings are decorative and in keeping with the style of others in the 
Crescent but using traditional materials. They could possibly act as a deterrence by 
making the Crescent less “open” and so increase security, although that would be 
difficult to measure. 

If approved at the AGM we would then have to apply for Building Consent at the 
Heritage Dept at the Council as the gates are included in the Listing. In the past we 
did receive approval for a fixed pedestrian gate in those locations but with a more 
complex design. The addition to the proposed amount above the contractor’s quote 
is to cover costs related to the planning consent application 



4. Confirmation of Crescent Levy for 2023/24 - Vote by Owners £6000 

The goal is to maintain a reserve in the Infrastructure Account of about £30,000. At year 
end 2022/23 the reserve was about £26,000. Taking into account the infrastructure project 
that has been proposed (new railings) the Committee recommends a Crescent Levy of 
about £6000 or about two thirds of that collected in 2022/23. 

The amount per dwelling is in proportion to the Council Tax bands as below 

A  £82    
B  £96 
C  £110    
D  £123 
E  £151    
F  £178 
G  £206 


